
ADDENDUM NO. 1 
August 7, 2024 

 
Project: 103 Rocca Road Stabilization and Retaining Wall Project  

Town of Fairfax and Miller Pacific 
Engineering Group 

 
From: Loren Umbertis 

Public Works Director 
Fairfax, CA 94930 

 
 

This Addendum forms a part of the Contract Documents and modifies the original bidding documents 
as noted below. Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Bid Form. 
Failure to do so may subject the Bidder to disqualification. 

  
 

Enclosed herein is Addendum Number 1 for the above referenced project. Addendum Number 1 forms a part 
of the Contract Documents and modifies OR clarifies the original plans and specifications and shall be 
acknowledged in the Addendum Acknowledgement page. All other conditions remain the same. 

 
ADDENDUM NUMBER 1 

 
 

1. Sheet 1 (Title Sheet) has been revised to update the Sheet Index so that the Boring Log is included as 
Sheet 7.  Best Management Practices & Details (previously Sheet 7) was changed to Sheet 8. 
 

2. Sheet 2 (Retaining Wall Plan & Profile) was updated to include the approximate location of the 
geotechnical boring. 
 

3. Sheet 7 was added to include the Boring Log from the geotechnical boring. 
 

4. The requirement for steel posts for the guardrail was removed from the Bid Schedule and Section 2525 of 
the Specifications since either steel or wood posts will be accepted. 

 

Response to Bidders Questions: 
 

1. Is mesh for retaining wall railing galvanized? 
Yes. The mesh shall be galvanized per ASTM A1060. 
 

2. What is the design load for the tiebacks?  
The design load for the tiebacks is 45 kips. The maximum test load is 60 kips. Please refer to Detail 3 on 
Sheet 6. 
 

3. Will any pavement restoration be required? 

Pavement restoration is not anticipated since the work will occur beyond the roadway. 

 
4. How will the location of the wall be laid out? 

The Town will provide construction staking for the center of piles (at the requested offset) for use in the wall 
layout. Any destruction of stakes by the Contractor shall constitute cause to hold the Contractor liable for 



the cost of re-staking.  

 
5. Is there a soils report for the project? 

A geotechnical report was not prepared for the project. A geotechnical boring was completed in 2010 and 
is included as Sheet 7 in the plans issued as part of this Addendum. The approximate location of the boring 
is shown on Sheet 4. 

 
6. The current existing guardrail is a Midwest railing system mounted on wood posts. The specifications on 

page 149 of the bid packet the Town provided specifies the railing to be mounted on steel posts? 

Wood or steel posts are acceptable. Wood posts shall conform to Caltrans Standard Plan A77L1.  Steel posts 
shall conform to Caltrans Standard Plan A77L2. 

 
7. Can you please confirm which post system you are wanting to be included in our price? 

Please refer to response to Question 6 above. Either option is acceptable to the Town. 
 

8. Can you also confirm whether or not you would like blocking for this project, and if so, plastic or wooden? 
And 8” or 12”? 

Blocking for the guardrails is required. The blocking should conform to the Standard Plans noted in Question 
6 above. 

 
9. Is there a specified / preferred length of the metal panels for the guardrail? I can get pricing for 6ft or 8ft 

panels? 

Panels should conform to the typical rail element shown on Caltrans Standard Plan A77M1 . 
 

 
END ADDENDUM NUMBER 1 

Please complete the Addendum Acknowledgement in the Proposal Form acknowledging receipt of this 
addendum. 

 
Thank you for your interest in this project. If you have any questions regarding this addendum, please contact 
Loren Umbertis (lumbertis@townoffairfax.org) and Mike Jewett (mjewett@millerpac.com), before 12 PM 
August 9th, 2023 at Miller Pacific Engineering Group, 707-765-6140. Answers after that time may not be 
answered due bidding restrictions.   

 
Sincerely Yours, 
LOREN UMBERTIS 
Director of Public Works 
 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

 
By: 
Mike Jewett, C.E.G. and Scott Stephens, G.E. Miller 
Pacific Engineering Group 
Interim Town Engineer 

 
 
 
 

mailto:lumbertis@townoffairfax.org


38072.00001\34443465.1 
 

 

 
 

-18- 00 41 43 – BID FORMS 

 

A. BID SCHEDULE 

Item Description Quantity Unit 

 
 
Unit 
Cost 

 
 
 
Extension 

1 Mobilization 1 LS   

2 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS   

3 Demolition and Removal 1 LS   

4 18-Inch Drilled Hole 165 LF   

5 Steel Soldier Pile 253 LF   

6 Timber Lagging 420 SF   

7 Tieback Anchors 5 EA   

8 Steel Waler 25 LF   

9 Backfill 125 CY   

10 Rock Slope Protection 8 TON   

11 Midwest Guardrail System (Steel Post) 50 LF   

12 Retaining Wall Safety Rail 50 LF   

13 Hydroseeding and Planting 1 LS   

      

Total 
      

 
The costs for any Work shown or required in the Contract Documents, but not specifically 
identified as a line item are to be included in the related line items and no additional compensation 
shall be due to Contractor for the performance of the Work.  

In case of discrepancy between the Unit Price and the Item Cost set forth for a unit basis item, 
the unit price shall prevail and shall be utilized as the basis for determining the lowest responsive, 
responsible Bidder. However, if the amount set forth as a unit price is ambiguous, unintelligible or 
uncertain for any cause, or is omitted, or is the same amount as the entry in the “Item Cost” 
column, then the amount set forth in the “Item Cost” column for the item shall prevail and shall be 
divided by the estimated quantity for the item and the price thus obtained shall be the Unit Price. 

For purposes of evaluating Bids, the Town will correct any apparent errors in the extension of unit 
prices and any apparent errors in the addition of lump sum and extended prices. 

The estimated quantities for Unit Price items are for purposes of comparing Bids only and the 
Town makes no representation that the actual quantities of work performed will not vary from the 
estimates. Final payment shall be determined by the Engineer from measured quantities of work 
performed based upon the Unit Price. 

 



 

2525-1 
 

SECTION 2525 
MIDWEST GUARDRAIL 

 
PART 1- GENERAL 
 
1.01 SCOPE OF WORK 
 

A. Work Included – Midwest Guardrail shall include installing guardrail as shown on the 
Drawings, or as directed by the Engineer. 

 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS  

 
A. Midwest Guardrail System shall conform to Section 83-2.02 of Caltrans Standard 

Specifications and shall be galvanized. 
 

B. Posts shall be steel. 
 
 
PART 3.0 – MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
Midwest Guardrail System will be measured by linear feet (LF). The contract unit price paid for 
linear feet (LF) of Midwest Guardrail System shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, 
materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in constructing the 
guardrail, including site access, coordination, fabrication, installation, and any other work required 
to install the guardrail, complete in place, as specified in these Specifications, and as directed by 
the Engineer. 

 
END OF SECTION 
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FAIRFAX, CALIFORNIA 94930
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RETAINING WALL PLAN
(SCALE: 1" = 5'-0")
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RETAINING WALL PROFILE
(SCALE: 1" = 5'-0")

NOTES:
(1) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH ENGINEER TO ESTABLISH THE RETAINING WALL, SOLDIER PILE

AND TIEBACK LAYOUTS PRIOR TO DRILLING AND SOLDIER PILE AND TIEBACK INSTALLATION.

(2) OVERALL SITE SAFETY IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN
PROPER CLEARANCES FROM EXISTING OVERHEAD WIRES. CONTRACTOR MAY NEED TO USE LOW OVERHEAD
EQUIPMENT, SPLICING OF STEEL BEAMS, COORDINATE WITH UTILITY OWNER TO WRAP LINES OR OTHER
MEANS TO FACILITATE WALL CONSTRUCTION.

(3) ALL SLOPING/BENCHING AND SHORING SHALL BE DESIGNED BY A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER AND
SUBMITTED TO THE TOWN FOR REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE.

(4) THIS LINE REPRESENTS THE APPROXIMATE EASTERN BOUNDARY OF THE EXISTING GABION STRUCTURE.
CONTRACTOR SHALL POTHOLE AS REQUIRED TO EXPOSE THE ACTUAL LIMITS OF THE GABION DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

(5) STEEPEN VERTICAL BATTER OF TIEBACKS UP TO 25 DEGREES TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH OTHER TIEBACKS
OR (E) UTILITIES.

(6) PLACE CALTRANS CLASS III AND IV RSP AT 1:1 OR FLATTER USING METHOD A PLACEMENT AS REQUIRED TO
BUTTRESS ANY UNSUPPORTED EXCAVATIONS THAT REMAIN BETWEEN (E) GABION AND (N) RETAINING WALL.
LINE THE SURFACE WITH CALTRANS CLASS 8 RSP FABRIC PRIOR TO RSP PLACEMENT. GROUT RSP ONCE IN
PLACE.
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Modified California and Standard Penetration Test samplers are
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blow.  Blows for the initial 6-inch drive seat the sampler.  Blows
for the final 12-inch drive are recorded onto the logs.  Sampler
refusal is defined as 50 blows during a 6-inch drive.  Examples of
blow records are as follows:
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initial 6-inch drive

85/7" sampler driven 7 inches with 85 blows after 
initial 6-inch drive
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NOTE: Test boring and test pit logs are an interpretation of conditions encountered
at the excavation location during the time of exploration.  Subsurface rock,
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descriptions are approximate and may indicate a gradual transition.
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no affect on cementation

coated with clay, oxides or carbonates

Subsurface rock, soil and water conditions may differ in other locations and with the passage of time.
Test boring and test pit logs are an interpretation of conditions encountered at the location and time of exploration.NOTE:
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to moderately weathered, hard, weak to friable,
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No groundwater encountered during drilling
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